
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

District of Maryland

AO 91 (Rev. 11/11) Criminal Complaint

United States of America
v.

JOHN MACDONALD JUNEK

Defendant(s)

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Case No.

CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

I, the complainant in this case, state that the following is true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

On or about the date(s) of September 3,2014 in the county of St. Mary's in the

District of Maryland , the defendant(s) violated:

Code Section

18 U.S.C. S 1112
Offense Description

Involuntary Manslaughter

This criminal complaint is based on these facts:

There is probable cause to believe that John MacDonald JUNEK committed involuntary manslaughter in violation of 18
U.S.C. S 1112 on or about September 3,2014 Naval Air Station (UNASU)Patuxent River, Maryland. See attached
Affidavit.

~ Continued on the attached sh~et.

SA Ricardo Solis, Naval Criminal Investigative Service
Printed name and title

Sworn to before me and signed in my presence.

Date: 09/04/2014

City and state: Greenbelt, MD Charles B. Day, U.S. Magistrate Judge
Printed name and title

Case 8:14-mj-01952-CBD   Document 1   Filed 09/04/14   Page 1 of 5



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v.

JOHN MACDONALD JUNEK

)
)
)
)
)

)

Crim. No. 114- IqS?-. CJO'D

AFFIDA VIT IN SUPPORT OF CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

I, Ricardo Solis, being first duly sworn, hereby depose and state as follows:

1. This affidavit is submitted in support of a criminal complaint for John MacDonald

JUNEK ("JUNEK"). As set forth below, there is probable cause to believe that JUNEK

committed involuntary manslaughter in violation of 18 U.S.c. S 1112 (a) on or about September

3,2014 in Naval Air Station ("NAS") Patuxent River, Maryland, within the special maritime and

territorial jurisdiction of the United States, 18 U.S.C. S 7 and Ill2(b).

INTRODUCTION

2. Your affiant has been a Special Agent with the Naval Criminal Investigative

Service ("NCIS") since September 2007. Your affiant currently investigates criminal violations

of federal, state and local laws, as well as the Uniform Code of Military Justice ("UCMJ"). Your

affiant gained investigative experience first by attending the Federal Law Enforcement Training

Center ("FLETC"), receiving training in conducting said investigations which include legal,

operational and tactical considerations. Additionally, while employed as a Federal Law

Enforcement Officer your affiant continued to receive additional training by attending numerous

state and local training, workshops and seminars as well as other federally supported training
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evolutions ranging from homicide, narcotics and sexually motivated criminal activities to

financial crimes.

3. Prior to NCIS, your Affiant held employment with the Department of Homeland

Security, Immigration and Customs Enforcement and with the El Paso, TX Police Department.

4. Your affiant conducts a wide range of criminal investigations to include

homicides, assaults, rapes, larceny, weapons possessions, narcotics, child pornography and

counter intelligence concerns. While employed in a law enforcement capacity your affiant has

made countless arrests for the aforementioned criminal activities and participated in the

execution of numerous search and seizure warrants authorized via Federal and State Warrants as

well as Military Command Authorization Search and Seizures ("CASS"). As a federal agent,

your affiant is authorized to investigate violations of laws of the United States and is a law

enforcement officer with authority to execute warrants issued under the authority of the United

States.

5. The facts in this affidavit come from my personal observations, my training and

experience, and information obtained from other law enforcement officers, witnesses, and

reports. This affidavit is intended to show merely that there is sufficient probable cause for the

requested complaint and does not set forth all of my knowledge about this matter.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND
6. On September 3,2014, at approximately 3:25 p.m., NAS Patuxent River base

police responded to a 911 call from JUNEK that his infant son had been found locked inside a

vehicle at the parking lot located at Building 2187 on NAS Patuxent River, where JUNEK

worked. The infant was described as unconscious, unresponsive, and not breathing. EMS, other

emergency personnel, and base police responded to the scene. Emergency personnel made
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efforts to revive the infant, but were unsuccessful and, the infant was pronounced deceased on

scene.

7. Law enforcement spoke with JUNEK at the scene. JUNEK told law enforcement

that he had dropped his 4 year old son at pre-school and was then supposed to drop off his infant

son at the Child Development Center ("CDC") on NAS Patuxent River. JUNEK explained that

he had driven to NAS Patuxent River, entered the base, and drove directly to his office at

building 2187. JUNEK further explained that he had failed to drop his son off at the CDC and

instead left the child inside in his rear-facing car-seat the vehicle parked in the parking lot at

approximately 8:50 a.m.

8. Your affiant, through investigation, determined that outside temperature reached

85 degrees in the NAS Patuxent River area on September 3, 2014.

9. JUNEK told law enforcement that he had received a call from his wife at

approximately 3:20 p.m. that day, and she had asked him ifhe had their son's car seat with him.

JUNEK recalled that he was not sure if he had the car seat or not and then realized that he had

possibly not dropped the child victim off at the CDC. JUNEK stated that he went to his vehicle

to check and discovered the child victim still sitting in his car seat unconscious. JUNEK opened

the car door and then began to try to awaken the victim but was unsuccessful. He told law

enforcement that he called 911 and then attempted to perform CPR on the victim until police and

EMS arrived and took over.

10. JUNEK also told law enforcement that at approximately 12:58 p.m. that same

day, he had departed his oflice for a I :00 p.m. meeting in a different building and had to drive

his vehicle to get there. JUNEK explained that he had opened the door to his vehicle, and that it

was very hot in the vehicle. JUNEK stated that he had to open the windows and tum on the air
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conditioner to get the hot air out of the vehicle and that it took until he had departed the parking

lot and was driving down the road for the vehicle to cool down. JUNEK was in the meeting until

approximately 2:00 p.m., and he returned to his office and parked the vehicle again in the

parking lot at Building 2187 with the windows rolled up. During the time of his use of the

vehicle during the day, JUNEK stated that he had been in a hurry to get to his meeting and did

not notice that his son was still strapped to his car seat in the rear seat of the vehicle.

11. Based on your affiant's investigation, JUNEK left his infant child inside the

vehicle with the windows rolled up for approximately 7 hours in temperatures up to 85 degrees

Fahrenheit, which constitutes the commission of an unlawful act not amounting to a felony, the

commission in an unlawful manner, and the commission without due caution and circumspection

of a lawful act which led to JUNEK's infant son's death.

CONCLUSION

11. Based on the aforementioned facts and circumstances, your affiant submits

respectfully that there is probable cause to believe that John MacDonald JUNEK committed

involuntary manslaughter in violation of 18 U.S.C. S 1112 on or about September 3, 2014 Naval

Air Station ("NAS") Patuxent River, Maryland.

FURTHER YOUR AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.

icardo Solis, pecial Agent .
Naval Criminal Investigative Service

day of September, 2014.
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